Ameris Bancorp Form DEF 14A March 24, 2008 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant x Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- " CONFIDENTIAL, FOR USE OF THE COMMISSION ONLY (AS PERMITTED BY RULE 14A-6(E)(2))
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material Pursuant to Section 240.14a-12

AMERIS BANCORP

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

x No fee required

" Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.

(1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:

(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (Set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):

(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

(5) Total fee paid:

•••

Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

(1) Amount Previously Paid:

(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:

(3) Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:

24 Second Avenue, S.E.

Moultrie, Georgia 31768

March 28, 2008

Dear Shareholder:

It is my pleasure to invite you to this year s annual meeting of shareholders, which will be held on Tuesday, April 29, 2008, at 4:15 p.m. local time, at Sunset Country Club, located at 2730 South Main Street, in Moultrie, Georgia.

The Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and the proxy statement that follow describe the business to be conducted at the meeting. We also will report on matters of current interest to our shareholders.

The proxy statement contains a shareholder proposal which your Board of Directors believes is not in the best interests of our shareholders. Your Board urges you to vote against this proposal.

We hope you will be able to attend the meeting. However, even if you plan to attend in person, please vote your shares promptly to ensure that they are represented at the meeting. You may submit your proxy vote by telephone or internet as described in the following materials or by completing and signing the enclosed proxy card and returning it in the envelope provided. If you decide to attend the meeting and wish to change your proxy vote, you may do so automatically by voting in person at the meeting.

If your shares are held in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee, you will need a proxy from the record holder of the shares authorizing you to vote at the meeting, as described in the proxy statement.

On behalf of Ameris Bancorp, I thank you for your continued support and look forward to seeing you at this year s annual meeting.

Sincerely,

Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer

Table of Contents

AMERIS BANCORP

24 Second Avenue, S.E.

Moultrie, Georgia 31768

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON APRIL 29, 2008

To the Shareholders of Ameris Bancorp:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the Annual Meeting) of Ameris Bancorp (the Company) will be held at Sunset Country Club, located at 2730 South Main Street, Moultrie, Georgia, on Tuesday, April 29, 2008, commencing at 4:15 p.m., local time, for the following items of business:

- (1) the election of three Class II directors for a three-year term of office and one Class III director for a one-year term of office;
- (2) the ratification of the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, LLC, as the Company s independent auditors for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007;
- (3) a shareholder proposal, if properly presented at the Annual Meeting, requesting the Board of Directors to take the necessary steps to declassify the Board of Directors; and
- (4) any other business that may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The close of business on February 19, 2008 has been fixed as the record date (the Record Date) for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Only shareholders of record at the close of business on the Record Date are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting.

Shareholders may receive more than one proxy if they own shares registered in different names or at different addresses. Each such proxy should be marked, dated, signed and returned. Please check to be certain of the manner in which your shares are registered whether individually, as joint tenants, or in a representative capacity and sign the related proxy accordingly.

A complete list of shareholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for examination by any shareholder for any purpose germane to the Annual Meeting, during normal business hours, for a period of at least 10 days prior to the Annual Meeting at the Company s corporate offices located at the address set forth above.

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting. Whether or not you plan to do so, please mark, date and sign the enclosed proxy and mail it promptly in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope or vote promptly by telephone or the internet. Returning or voting your proxy does not deprive you of your right to attend the Annual Meeting and to vote your shares in person.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Moultrie, Georgia March 28, 2008 Cindi H. Lewis Corporate Secretary

TABLE OF CONTENTS

General Information	1
Solicitation of Proxies	1
Quorum and Vote Required	1
Proposal 1 Election of Directors	2
Director Independence	4
Committees of the Board	4
Board and Committee Meetings	6
Identifying and Evaluating Nominees	6
Communication with the Board and its Committees	7
Executive Compensation	7
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	7
Compensation Committee Report	11
Summary Compensation Table	11
2007 Grants of Plan-Based Awards	12
Employment and Compensation Arrangements	13
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	16
Option Exercises and Stock Vested	17
Equity Compensation Plans	17
Pension Benefits	18
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation	18
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control	18
Director Compensation	20
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	20
Report of the Audit Committee of the Board	21
Proposal 2 Ratification of Independent Auditors	22
Fees and Services	22
Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services	22
Proposal 3 Shareholder Proposal to Declassify Board of Directors	23
Shareholder Proposal	23
Board of Directors Recommendation	24
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	26
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	27
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions	27
Other Matters	28
Additional Information	28
Shareholder Proposals	28
Annual Report	28
Householding of Proxy Materials	28

AMERIS BANCORP

24 Second Avenue, S.E.

Moultrie, Georgia 31768

PROXY STATEMENT

GENERAL INFORMATION

Solicitation of Proxies

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying form of proxy (which were first sent or given to shareholders on or about March 28, 2008) are being furnished to shareholders of Ameris Bancorp (the Company) in connection with the solicitation of proxies by and on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the Annual Meeting) to be held at Sunset County Club, located at 2730 South Main Street, Moultrie, Georgia, on Tuesday, April 29, 2008, at 4:15 p.m., local time, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

A proxy may be revoked at any time before the shares represented by it are voted at the Annual Meeting by delivering to the Corporate Secretary of the Company either a written revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date or by voting in person at the Annual Meeting. All shares represented by a properly executed, unrevoked proxy will be voted on all matters presented at the Annual Meeting on which the shares are entitled to vote, unless the shareholder attends the Annual Meeting and votes in person. Please note, however, that if shares are held in street name, which means the shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, the shares may be voted only at the Annual Meeting with a proxy from the record holder of the shares authorizing the attendee to vote at the Annual Meeting. Proxies solicited will be voted in accordance with the instructions given on the enclosed form of proxy.

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on February 19, 2008 (the Record Date) are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting. On the Record Date, the Company had 13,556,770 shares of its common stock, \$1.00 par value per share (the Common Stock), outstanding and entitled to vote. All holders of Common Stock are entitled to cast one vote per share held as of the Record Date.

The cost of preparing and mailing proxy materials will be borne by the Company. The Company has retained Georgeson Shareholder Communications Inc. to assist the Company and the Board in the distribution of proxies and accompanying materials to brokerage houses and institutions and in the solicitation of proxies for an estimated fee of \$8,000 plus expenses. In addition to solicitation by mail, solicitations may be made by directors, officers and other employees of the Company in person or by telephone, facsimile or other means. Brokerage houses, custodians, nominees and fiduciaries will be reimbursed for the expense of sending proxy materials to the beneficial owners of Common Stock held of record on behalf of such persons.

Quorum and Vote Required

A quorum of the Company s shareholders is necessary to transact business at the Annual Meeting. The presence at the Annual Meeting, in person or by proxy, of shares of Common Stock representing a majority of the shares of Common Stock outstanding and entitled to vote as of the Record Date will constitute a quorum for transacting business at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes, discussed below, count as present for establishing a quorum.

Directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting, meaning that the three Class II nominees receiving the most votes will be elected as Class II directors and the Class III nominee receiving the most votes will be elected as a Class III director. Cumulative voting is not permitted. Approval of each of the other proposals requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of Common Stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the

Annual Meeting. If a quorum is not present at the Annual Meeting, then it is expected that the Annual Meeting will be adjourned or postponed to solicit additional proxies.

Under certain circumstances, brokers are prohibited from exercising discretionary authority for beneficial owners who have not returned proxies to the brokers (so-called broker non-votes). In these cases, and in cases where the shareholder abstains from voting on a matter, those shares will be counted for the purpose of determining if a quorum is present. Such shares will also have the same effect as a vote against the proposal, other than the election of directors, in which case such shares will not be included in the vote totals with respect to the election of directors and, therefore, will have no effect on the vote. All votes will be tabulated by the inspector of elections for the Annual Meeting, who will separately tabulate affirmative and negative votes, abstentions and broker non-votes.

PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The business affairs of the Company are managed under the direction of the Board in accordance with the Georgia Business Corporation Code, as implemented by the Company s Articles of Incorporation and bylaws. The role of the Board is to effectively govern the affairs of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders and other constituencies. The Board strives to ensure the success and continuity of business through the election of qualified management. It is also responsible for ensuring that the Company s activities are conducted in a responsible and ethical manner. The Company is committed to having sound corporate governance principles.

The Company has a classified Board currently consisting of three Class I directors (Johnny W. Floyd, Edwin W. Hortman, Jr. and Daniel B. Jeter), four Class II directors (J. Raymond Fulp, Robert P. Lynch, Brooks Sheldon and Henry C. Wortman), and two Class III directors (Glenn A. Kirbo and Eugene M. Vereen, Jr.). The Class II directors currently serve until the Annual Meeting, and the Class I and Class III directors currently serve until the annual meetings of shareholders to be held in 2010 and 2009, respectively. After the Annual Meeting, the Class I, Class II and Class III directors will serve until the annual meetings of shareholders to be held in 2010, 2011 and 2009, respectively, and until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified.

At each annual meeting of shareholders, directors are duly elected for a full term of three years to succeed those whose terms are expiring, although directors may be elected for shorter terms in certain instances, such as filling a vacancy in a particular class of directors. Vacancies on the Board and newly-created directorships also can generally be filled by a vote of a majority of the directors then in office. The Company s executive officers are appointed annually by the Board and serve at the discretion of the Board.

At the Annual Meeting, shareholders are being asked to (i) re-elect Messrs. Fulp, Lynch and Sheldon to serve as Class II directors until the 2011 annual meeting of shareholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified and (ii) elect Jimmy D. Veal to serve as a Class III director until the 2009 annual meeting of shareholders and until his successor is duly elected and qualified. Mr. Veal is being nominated to fill the vacancy on the Board that currently exists as a result of the retirement of Kenneth J. Hunnicutt in May, 2007. Mr. Wortman, currently a Class II director, is retiring upon the expiration of his current term and, as a result, has not been nominated for re-election as a Class II director.

Proxies cannot be voted at the Annual Meeting for a greater number of persons than the number of nominees named.

Unless otherwise directed, the persons named as proxies and attorneys in the enclosed form of proxy intend to vote FOR the election of all nominees as directors for the ensuing term and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. If any such nominee for any reason should

not be available as a candidate for director, votes will be cast pursuant to authority granted by the enclosed proxy for such other candidate or candidates as may be nominated by the Board. The Board is unaware of a nominee who is unable to serve as a director or will decline to serve as a director, if elected.

The following sets forth certain information, as of the Record Date, for all Class II nominees.

J. Raymond Fulp (age 63) has served as a director of the Company since 1989 and as a director of Ameris Bank since February, 2006. Mr. Fulp served as a director and Chairman of the Board of Citizens Security Bank, formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from 1987 and 2000, respectively, and until the merger of Citizens Security Bank into Ameris Bank in 2006. Mr. Fulp is a pharmacist and was the co-owner of Midtown Pharmacy in Tifton, Georgia from 1974 until its sale in 1999.

Robert P. Lynch (age 44) has served as a director of the Company since 2000 and as a director of Ameris Bank since February, 2006. Mr. Lynch is the Vice President of Lynch Management Company, which owns and manages five car dealerships located in the Southeast. Mr. Lynch s family also owns and operates Shadydale Farm, a beef cattle operation located in Shady Dale, Georgia.

Brooks Sheldon (age 62) has served as a director of the Company since 2005 and as a director of Ameris Bank since 2003. Additionally, he served as President and a director of Ameris Bank from 1989 until his retirement in 1997. Mr. Sheldon currently serves as finance chairman on the Colquitt County Hospital Authority Board.

The following sets forth certain information, as of the Record Date, with respect to Mr. Veal, as the sole Class III nominee.

Jimmy D. Veal (age 59) has been active in the hospitality industry for over 35 years. Mr. Veal currently owns and operates, together with his family, The Beachview Club on Jekyll Island, Georgia and Beachview Tent Rentals in Brunswick, Georgia. He is also active in various real estate and timberland ventures in Glynn County, Georgia and Camden County, Georgia. Mr. Veal was a founding director of Golden Isles Financial Holdings, Inc., which was the corporate parent of The First Bank of Brunswick prior to its acquisition by the Company and subsequent merger into Ameris Bank. He served as a director of both Golden Isles Financial Holdings, Inc. and The First Bank of Brunswick from their inception in 1989 until their acquisition by the Company in 2001 and as Vice Chairman of both companies from 1996 until 2001. Mr. Veal is currently Chairman of Ameris Bank in Brunswick, Georgia.

The Board recommends a vote FOR election of the nominated directors. Proxies will be voted FOR the election of the four nominees unless otherwise specified.

The following sets forth certain information, as of the Record Date, for all other directors of the Company, including those whose terms of office will continue after the Annual Meeting.

Johnny W. Floyd (age 69) has served as a director of the Company since 1995 and as a director of Ameris Bank, the Company s wholly-owned banking subsidiary (Ameris Bank), since February, 2006. Mr. Floyd served as a director and Chairman of the Board of Central Bank and Trust, formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from 1986 and 1988, respectively, and until the merger of Central Bank and Trust into Ameris Bank in February, 2006. Mr. Floyd is the President of Floyd Timber Company, a forestry products company, and the President of Cordele Realty, Inc. Mr. Floyd has also been a member of the Georgia House of Representatives since 1989. Mr. Floyd s term expires in the year 2010.

Edwin W. Hortman, Jr. (age 54) has served as a director of the Company since November, 2003. Mr. Hortman has also served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since January, 2005. From November, 2003 through December, 2004, Mr. Hortman served as President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company, and from 2002 to 2003, Mr. Hortman served as Executive Vice President and North Regional Executive of the Company. From 1998 through 2003, Mr. Hortman served as President and CEO of Citizens Security Bank, formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Hortman also served as a director of Citizens Security Bank from 1998 to 2004. In addition, Mr. Hortman served as a director of Central Bank & Trust, Southland Bank, First National Bank of South Georgia and Merchants & Farmers Bank, formerly wholly-

3

owned subsidiaries of the Company, from 2002 to 2004. From 1992 to 1998, Mr. Hortman was Senior Vice President of Colony Bankcorp, Inc. and President of Colony Management Services. Mr. Hortman serves as a director of the Georgia Bankers Association Insurance Trust and on the Board of Trustees for Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College. Mr. Hortman s term expires in the year 2010.

Daniel B. Jeter (age 56) has served as a director of the Company since 1997 and as a director of Ameris Bank since 2002. Mr. Jeter is the Vice President and a majority shareholder of Standard Discount Corporation (Standard), a family-owned consumer finance company. Mr. Jeter joined Standard in 1979 and is an officer and director of each of Standard s affiliates, including Colquitt Loan Company, Globe Loan Company of Hazelhurst, Globe Loan Company of Tifton, Globe Loan Company of Moultrie, Peach Finance Company, Personal Finance Service of Statesboro, Globe Financial Services of Thomasville, Classic Insurance Company, Ltd. and Cavalier Insurance Company (of which he is President). Mr. Jeter is also a director and officer of the Georgia Industrial Loan Corporation and a director of Allied Business Systems. Mr. Jeter s term expires in the year 2010.

Glenn A. Kirbo (age 60) has served as a director of the Company since May, 2005 and as a director of Ameris Bank since February, 2006. Mr. Kirbo served as a director and Chairman of the Board of First National Bank of South Georgia, formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from 1990 and 1996, respectively, and until the merger of First National Bank of South Georgia into Ameris Bank in February, 2006. Mr. Kirbo is also president of the law firm of Kirbo and Kirbo, P.C. in Albany, Georgia, and he is currently serving as President and Chairman of the Board of the Doublegate Country Club, LTD. Mr. Kirbo also serves as a director of Health Systems Management, Inc. and Ocala Casualty Company. Additionally, Mr. Kirbo is a partner in Barkley-Kirbo Building Partnership, and he serves as president of Kirbo Properties, Inc., Staunton Warehouse, Inc. and West Crisp Investments, Inc. Mr. Kirbo s term expires in the year 2009.

Eugene M. Vereen, Jr. (age 87) has served as a director of the Company since 1981. Mr. Vereen served as the Chairman of the Board from 1981 to 1995 and served as Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 1981 to 1994. Mr. Vereen has also served as a director of Ameris Bank since 1971 and as a director of Heritage Community Bank and Citizens Security Bank, formerly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and Bank of Thomas County and Cairo Banking Company, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, from the time the Company acquired each such subsidiary until 1995. Mr. Vereen previously served as President of Ameris Bank from 1971 to 1974 and as Senior President of Ameris Bank from 1974 to 1989. Mr. Vereen now serves as the Chairman of the Board Emeritus of the Company and as President Emeritus of Ameris Bank. Mr. Vereen served as Chairman of the Board of Moultrie Insurance Agency from 1951 until its sale in 1983 and is Chairman and director of M.I.A., Co., an investment company. Mr. Vereen s term expires in the year 2009.

The backgrounds of the directors with terms expiring in 2008 are summarized above in the discussion of Class II nominees.

Director Independence

Each member of the Board other than Mr. Hortman is independent as defined for purposes of the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) and the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market (Nasdaq). For a director to be considered independent, the Board must determine that the director does not have a relationship with the Company that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. In making this determination, the Board will consider all relevant facts and circumstances, including any transactions or relationships between the director and the Company or its subsidiaries.

Committees of the Board

Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is currently comprised of four directors, only one of whom is a current or former employee of the Company. The current members of the Executive Committee are Messrs. Fulp, Hortman, Jeter and Lynch. The Executive Committee is authorized to exercise all of the powers of the

Board, except the power to declare dividends, elect directors, amend the Company s Bylaws, issue stock or recommend any action to the Company s shareholders.

Executive Loan Committee. The Executive Loan Committee is currently comprised of five members. Four members of the Executive Loan Committee are directors of the Company, and one member is a non-director employee of the Company. The current members of the Executive Loan Committee who are also directors are Messrs. Fulp, Hortman, Jeter and Wortman. The other current member is Jon S. Edwards, the Company s Director of Credit Administration. The Executive Loan Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving all loan and credit requests involving principal amounts greater than \$5.0 million for the Company and Ameris Bank.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee is currently comprised of four directors, Messrs. Fulp, Jeter, Kirbo and Wortman, none of whom is a current or former employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and all of whom are independent directors of the Company. The duties of the Compensation Committee, which does not have a formal written charter but which acts according to established policies and procedures, are generally to establish the compensation for the Company s executive officers and to act on such other matters relating to compensation as it deems appropriate, including an annual evaluation of the Company s Chief Executive Officer (the CEO) and the design and oversight of all compensation and benefit programs in which the Company s employees and officers are eligible to participate. Additional information regarding the Compensation Committee s processes and procedures for consideration of executive officer compensation is provided in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis below.

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is currently comprised of five members, none of whom is a current or former employee of the Company and all of whom are independent directors of the Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Floyd, Fulp, Lynch, Sheldon and Wortman. The Audit Committee, which operates under a written charter, represents the Board in discharging its responsibility relating to the accounting, reporting and financial practices of the Company and its subsidiaries. Its primary functions include monitoring the integrity of the Company s financial statements, system of internal controls, and compliance with regulatory and legal requirements; monitoring the independence, qualifications and performance of the Company s independent auditor and internal auditing services; and providing an avenue of communication among the independent auditor, management, internal audit and the Board.

Asset Liability Management Committee. The Asset Liability Management Committee is currently comprised of eight members, three of whom are directors of the Company and the remainder of whom are non-director employees of the Company. The directors who serve on the Asset Liability Management Committee are Messrs. Hortman, Jeter and Sheldon. Messrs. Jeter and Sheldon are non-employee directors. The Asset Liability Management Committee manages the Company s mix of assets so as to minimize risk and maximize profits, guards against any concentration of assets (including, for example, excessive amounts of loans to one borrower or excessive amounts of investment securities from the same issuer), ensures that reserves against losses are adequate to prevent depletion of earnings, and approves the overall strategy of the Company s investment portfolio.

Investment Committee. The Investment Committee is currently comprised of three members, two of whom, Messrs. Hortman and Sheldon, are directors of the Company, with the third being a non-director employee of the Company. Mr. Sheldon is a non-employee director of the Company. The Investment Committee is responsible for overseeing the implementation of overall investment portfolio strategy approved by the Asset Liability Management Committee

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is currently comprised of three members, all of whom are independent directors of the Company. The members of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee are Messrs. Floyd, Kirbo and Lynch. Pursuant to its charter, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for considering, and making

5

recommendations to the Board regarding, the size and composition of the Board, recommending and nominating candidates to fill Board vacancies that may occur and recommending to the Board the Director nominees for whom the Board will solicit proxies. Additional information regarding the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee s processes and procedures is provided below under Identifying and Evaluating Nominees.

Board and Committee Meetings

In 2007, the Board held 12 meetings, the Executive Committee held two meetings, the Executive Loan Committee held 17 meetings, the Compensation Committee held nine meetings, the Audit Committee held five meetings, the Asset Liability Management Committee and the Investment Committee each held 10 meetings, and the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee held six meetings. Each director attended at least 75% of all meetings of the full Board and of those committees on which he served and was eligible to attend in 2007, other than Mr. Vereen, whose attendance was limited by illness. Additionally, the non-management directors met without any members of management or other employees present four times in 2007.

The 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders was attended by all members of the Board. It is the Board s policy that all directors should attend the 2008 Annual Meeting absent exceptional cause.

Identifying and Evaluating Nominees

With respect to the nomination process, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee reviews the composition and size of the Board to insure that it has the proper expertise and independence; determines the criteria for the selection of Board members and Board committee members; plans for continuity on the Board as existing Board members retire or rotate off the Board; establishes criteria for qualifications as independent directors, consistent with applicable laws and listing standards; maintains a file of suitable candidates for consideration as nominees to the Board; reviews Board candidates recommended by shareholders in compliance with all director nomination procedures for shareholders; and recommends to the Board the slate of nominees of directors to be elected by the shareholders and any directors to be elected by the Board to fill vacancies.

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee has not established specific minimum age, education, years of business experience or specific types of skills for potential candidates, but, in general, expects qualified candidates will have ample experience and a proven record of business success and leadership. In general, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee requires that each Board candidate will have the highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values and will consistently exercise sound and objective business judgment. In addition, it is anticipated that the Board as a whole will have individuals with significant appropriate senior management or other leadership experience, a long-term and strategic perspective and the ability to advance constructive debate.

While the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee has authority to retain a search firm or consultants to assist in identifying director candidates, to date no such search firm or consultants have been engaged, and the Company has never received a proposed director candidate from a source outside of the Company. However, the Board would consider any director candidate proposed in good faith by a shareholder of the Company. To do so, a shareholder should send the director candidate s name, credentials, contact information and his or her consent to be considered as a candidate to the Corporate Secretary of the Company. The proposing shareholder should also include his or her contact information and a statement of his or her share ownership (how many shares owned and for how long). The Board will evaluate candidates based on their financial literacy, business acumen and experience, independence for purposes of compliance with SEC and Nasdaq rules and willingness, ability and availability for service. There are no differences in the manner in which the Corporate Governance and Nominating

Committee evaluates a candidate that is recommended for nomination for membership on the Board by a shareholder.

Communication with the Board and its Committees

Any shareholder may communicate with the Board by directing correspondence to the Board, any of its committees, or one or more individual members, in care of the Corporate Secretary, Ameris Bancorp, 24 Second Avenue, S.E., Moultrie, Georgia 31768.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Compensation Committee has overall responsibility for establishing, implementing and monitoring the compensation structure, policies and programs of the Company. The Committee is responsible for assessing and approving the total compensation structure paid to the CEO and other executive officers of the Company. Accordingly, the Compensation Committee is responsible for determining whether the compensation paid to each of the Named Executives (as defined below) is fair, reasonable and competitive, and whether such compensation serves the interest of the Company s shareholders. The Compensation Committee s Chairman regularly reports to the Board on the actions and recommendations of the Compensation Committee may retain (at the Company s expense) outside counsel, compensation consultants and other advisors to assist as needed.

The individuals who served as the Company s CEO and Chief Financial Officer during 2007, as well as the other individuals included in the Summary Compensation Table below, are referred to in this Proxy Statement as the Named Executives. With respect to the Named Executives, this Compensation Discussion and Analysis identifies the Company s current compensation philosophy and objectives and describes the various methodologies, polices and practices for establishing and administering the compensation programs of the Named Executives.

Biographical information with respect to the Named Executives is set forth in Part III, Item 10 of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, which information is incorporated herein by this reference.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

The Compensation Committee believes that the most effective executive compensation programs are those that align the interests of the executive with those of the Company s shareholders. The Compensation Committee also believes that a properly structured compensation program will attract and retain talented individuals and motivate them to achieve both short- and long-term strategic objectives and that a significant portion of executive pay should be based on the Company s financial and operating performance. However, the Compensation Committee also recognizes that the Company must maintain its ability to attract highly talented executives. For this reason, an important objective of the Compensation Committee is to ensure that the compensation programs of the Named Executives are competitive as compared to similar positions with competitive companies and companies of similar size.

The Company s executive compensation programs are designed to provide:

levels of base compensation that are competitive geographically and with comparable companies;

annual incentive compensation that varies in a consistent manner with the achievement of individual performance objectives and financial results of the Company;

long-term incentive compensation that focuses executive efforts on building shareholder value through meeting longer-term financial and strategic goals; and

executive benefits that are meaningful and competitive with comparable companies.

7

In designing and administering its executive compensation program, the Compensation Committee attempts to strike an appropriate balance among these various elements. The Compensation Committee considers the pay practices of competitive and similar-sized companies to determine the appropriate pay mix and compensation levels. With respect to performance-based pay, the Compensation Committee believes that executive compensation should be closely tied to financial and operational performance of the Company, as well as to the individual performance and responsibility level of the Named Executives. The Compensation Committee also believes there should be a significant equity-based component to executive compensation because this best aligns the executives interests with those of the Company s shareholders. For purposes of retention, the Compensation Committee believes that the equity-based compensation should have meaningful conditions to encourage valued employees to remain with the Company. Finally, the Compensation Committee also considers other forms of executive pay as a means to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified executives.

Methodology for Establishing Compensation

The Compensation Committee is comprised of four independent directors, all of whom satisfy the Nasdaq listing requirements and relevant SEC regulations. None of the Compensation Committee members is an officer, employee or former officer or employee of the Company.

The Compensation Committee is responsible for all compensation decisions for the CEO and other Named Executives. The CEO, with the assistance of the Company s Chief Administrative Officer, annually reviews the performance of the other Named Executives, after which the CEO presents his conclusions and recommendations to the Compensation Committee for approval. The Compensation Committee has absolute discretion as to whether it approves the recommendations of the CEO or makes adjustments, as it deems appropriate.

Elements of Compensation

Total direct compensation includes cash, in the form of base salary and annual incentives, and long-term equity incentives. The Compensation Committee evaluates the mix between these elements based on the pay practices of comparable companies. The Compensation Committee strives to be fully informed in its determination of the appropriate compensation mix and award levels for the Named Executives, including consideration of publicly available information and the retention of compensation consultants when deemed appropriate. The Compensation Committee s guiding principles of fairness to employees, retention of talented executives and fostering improved Company performance inform all of its compensation decisions, which will ultimately benefit the Company s shareholders. With respect to the Named Executives, the following describes the objectives and polices that underlie the various elements of the compensation mix:

Base Salary

It is the Company s philosophy that employees be paid a base salary that is competitive with the salaries paid by comparable organizations based on each employee s experience, performance and any other unique factors or qualifications. Generally, the Company has chosen to position cash compensation at close to market median levels in order to remain competitive in attracting and retaining executive talent. The allocation of total cash between base salary and annual bonus is based on a variety of factors. The Compensation Committee considers a combination of the executive s performance, the performance of the Company and the individual business or corporate function for which the executive is responsible, the nature and importance of the position and role within the Company, the scope of the executive s responsibility and the current compensation package in place for that executive, including the executive s current annual salary and potential bonus awards under the Company s bonus plan.

The Compensation Committee evaluates executive salaries annually. Following its review of executive salaries in May, 2007, the Compensation Committee determined to increase the base salaries of the Named Executives.

Annual Bonus

The Company intends to continue its strategy of compensating the Named Executives through programs that emphasize performance-based incentive compensation. The Company s bonus program was designed to recognize and reward executive officers and other employees who contribute meaningfully to an increase in shareholder value, profitability and customer satisfaction. In general, the funding of the Company s bonus pool is dependent upon the Company s overall success.

In connection with the Company s bonus program, the Compensation Committee sets various goals with respect to the Company s performance, as well as individual performance. Incentive compensation is then paid to individual executives and other employees based on the degree to which such specified goals are achieved. Performance is determined in several areas, including, but not limited to, increases in the Company s market value, substantial achievement of strategic plan objectives and periodically advice from experts in the field of executive compensation.

Long-Term Incentive Awards

Long-term incentive awards are the third component of the Company s total compensation package. The Compensation Committee believes that equity-based compensation ensures that the Company s officers have a continuing stake in the long-term success of the Company.

The Company s officers and certain other employees may participate in the Company s 2005 Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 2005 Plan). Awards may be granted under the 2005 Plan from time to time and may be in the form of qualified or nonqualified stock options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights, long-term incentive compensation units consisting of a combination of cash and Common Stock or any combination thereof within the limitations set forth in the 2005 Plan. The 2005 Plan provides that awards may be made for 10 years from its effective date of March 10, 2005. The 2005 Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee, which selects eligible employees to participate in the 2005 Plan and determines the type, amount and duration of all individual awards. Prior to the adoption of the 2005 Plan, equity awards were granted pursuant to the ABC Bancorp Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long-Term Incentive Plan that was adopted in 1997 and which now is operative only with respect to the exercise of options that remain outstanding under such plan.

Options granted under the 2005 Plan generally vest in equal installments over a five-year period, subject to achievement of specified performance targets. All stock options have been granted with a 10-year term and have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant. The Company has also awarded restricted stock to the Named Executives under the 2005 Plan. Restricted stock awards generally vest in equal installments over a three-year period, subject to achievement of specified performance targets. Shares of restricted stock are held by the Company in escrow until restrictions lapse and the participant pays taxes on the shares. Participants receive all dividends payable on their restricted stock and vote their shares. Restricted stock cannot be sold or transferred until the shares vest. Should a Named Executive leave the Company prior to the completion of the applicable vesting schedule, the unvested portion of the grant is forfeited.

In June, 2007, all Named Executives received grants of stock options under the 2005 Plan. No prior grants of performance-based awards under the Company s long-term incentive plans have vested based on the Company s 2007 performance.

Broad-Based Benefits Programs

The Named Executives are entitled to participate in the benefits programs that are available to all full-time employees of the Company. These benefits include hospitalization, major medical, disability and group life insurance plans, paid vacation and Company contributions to a 401(k) profit sharing plan.

2007 Evaluation of CEO Compensation and Executive Performance

CEO Compensation

The Compensation Committee meets with the other independent directors each year in executive session to evaluate the performance of the CEO. The Compensation Committee does not confer with the CEO or any other members of management when setting the CEO s base salary. The Compensation Committee does not rely solely on predetermined formulas or a limited set of criteria when it evaluates the performance of the CEO and the other Named Executives. In 2007, the Compensation Committee considered management s continuing achievement of its short-and long-term goals versus its strategic objectives as well as financial targets and successful stock returns to the Company s shareholders.

In determining an appropriate salary adjustment for the CEO, the Compensation Committee considered the Company s overall performance, including financial and operating performance and market growth. The Compensation Committee determined that the CEO s base salary should be increased in light of the Company s performance and competitive factors and approved a merit increase to raise the CEO s base salary. The increase became effective on May 25, 2007.

Named Executive Officers Compensation

The CEO met with the Compensation Committee to review his compensation recommendations for the other Named Executives. He described the findings of his performance evaluation of each Named Executive and provided the basis of his recommendations to the Compensation Committee, including the scope of their duties and oversight responsibilities and the executive officers individual objectives and goals against results achieved for 2007.

For fiscal year 2007, the Compensation Committee approved base salary adjustments for the Named Executives to take effect on May 25, 2007. In its analysis of the other Named Executive Officers, the Compensation Committee applied the same rationale to this group as it applied when considering the CEO s base salary.

The table below sets forth the base salary of each Named Executive effective as of May 25, 2007.

Name	2007 Base Salary		
Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.	\$	400,000	
Dennis J. Zember Jr.	\$	215,000	
C. Johnson Hipp, III	\$	225,000	
Jon S. Edwards	\$	169,000	
Johnny R. Myers	\$	165,000	

Administrative Policies and Practices

To evaluate and administer the compensation programs of the CEO and other Named Executives, the Compensation Committee meets periodically each year in conjunction with regularly scheduled Board meetings. The Compensation Committee also holds special meetings and meets telephonically, as necessary, to discuss extraordinary items, which would include the hiring or dismissal of a Named Executive. Additionally, the Compensation Committee members regularly confer with the Company s Chief Administrative Officer on matters regarding the compensation of the CEO and other Named Executives.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

To further ensure that the long-term interests of the Company s senior management are aligned with those of the Company s shareholders, the Named Executives, as well as the Company s directors and other officers, are required by the Company s stock ownership guidelines to acquire and maintain a specified investment in the Company.

10

Tax Deductibility of Executive Officer Compensation

Certain provisions of the federal tax laws limit the deductibility of certain compensation for the CEO and other executives to \$1.0 million in applicable remuneration in any year. To date, this provision has had no effect on the Company because no officer of the Company has received \$1.0 million in applicable remuneration in any year. The Compensation Committee, for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders, will take the necessary steps to conform its compensation to qualify for deductibility if it appears that the threshold may be exceeded at some time in the future. Further, the Compensation Committee intends to give strong consideration to the deductibility of compensation in making its compensation decisions for executive officers in the future, again balancing the goal of maintaining a compensation program which will enable the Company to attract and retain qualified executives with the goal of maximizing the creation of long-term shareholder value.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis contained in this Proxy Statement with the Company s management. Based upon that review and those discussions, the Compensation Committee recommends to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee:

J. Raymond Fulp (Chairman)

Daniel B. Jeter

Glenn A. Kirbo

Henry C. Wortman

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth all compensation paid or accrued during 2007 and 2006 to the Named Executives.

Name and				Stock	Option	All Other	
Principal Position	Year	Salary	Bonus(1)	Awards(2)	Awards(3)	Compensation	Total
Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.	2007	\$ 396,162(4)	\$ 0	\$ 124,003	\$ 39,716	\$ 34,324(6)	\$ 594,205
President and Chief Executive Officer	2006	\$ 333,867(5)	\$ 271,000	\$ 200,735	\$ 17,937	\$ 36,892(7)	\$ 860,431
Dennis J. Zember Jr.	2007	\$ 208,958	\$ 0	\$ 41,520	\$ 35,057	\$ 14,330(8)	\$ 299,865

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	2006	\$ 195,500	\$ 141,000	\$ 20,760	\$ 19,250	\$ 9,939(9)	\$ 386,449
C. Johnson Hipp, III	2007	\$ 220,833	\$ 0	\$ 42,140	\$ 20,300	\$ 13,285(10)	\$ 296,558
Executive Vice President and Group President for South Carolina	2006	\$ 118,525	\$ 59,263	\$ 21,070	\$ 9,320	\$ 4,200(11)	\$ 212,378
Jon S. Edwards	2007	\$ 165,963	\$ 0	\$ 10,851	\$ 19,292	\$ 17,530(12)	\$ 213,636
Executive Vice President and Director of Credit Administration	2006	\$ 159,748	\$ 79,874	\$ 16,565	\$ 10,236	\$ 20,372(13)	\$ 286,795
Johnny R. Myers	2007	\$ 160,417	\$ 0	\$ 6,920	\$ 18,226	\$ 18,513(14)	\$ 204,076
Executive Vice President and South Regional Executive	2006	\$ 151,667	\$ 80,383	\$ 3,460	\$ 4,808	\$ 6,580(15)	\$ 246,898

For 2006, represents bonus earned for 2006 and paid January 31, 2007. Does not include bonuses earned in 2005 and paid in 2006 in the following amounts: Mr. Hortman - \$132,292; Mr. Zember - \$74,200; Mr. Edwards - \$61,967; and Mr. Myers \$37,333. For 2007, represents bonus earned for 2007 and paid January 31, 2008.

11

- (2) Represents the amount of expense recognized by the Company for stock awards outstanding to the Named Executives. This is the grant date fair value as determined by the stock price on the date of issuance recognized pro rata over the award s vesting period. For additional information, refer to note 15 to the Company s financial statements in its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 and its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, each as filed with the SEC.
- (3) Represents the amount of expense recognized by the Company for option awards outstanding to the Named Executives. This is the grant date fair value as determined by the Black-Scholes option pricing model recognized pro rata over the award s vesting period. For additional information, refer to note 15 to the Company s financial statements in its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 and its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, each as filed with the SEC.
- (4) Includes director s fees paid in cash of \$16,996.
- (5) Includes director s fees paid in cash of \$15,116.
- (6) For 2007, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Hortman to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$18,000 and Mr. Hortman received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$16,324.
- (7) For 2006, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Hortman to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$17,600 and Mr. Hortman received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$19,292.
- (8) For 2007, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Zember to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$11,250 and Mr. Zember received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$3,080.
- (9) For 2006, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Zember to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$7,419 and Mr. Zember received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$2,520.
- (10) For 2007, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Hipp to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$7,685 and Mr. Hipp received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$5,600.
- (11) For 2006, Mr. Hipp received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$4,200.
- (12) For 2007, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Edwards to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$16,513 and Mr. Edwards received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$1,017.
- (13) For 2006, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Edwards to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$17,600 and Mr. Edwards received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$2,772.
- (14) For 2007, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Myers to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$18,000 and Mr. Myers received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$513.
- (15) For 2006, the Company made contributions for the benefit of Mr. Myers to the Company s 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan in the amount of \$6,160 and Mr. Myers received dividends on shares of restricted Common Stock in the amount of \$420.

2007 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information regarding grants of equity awards made during 2007 to the Named Executives.

		Estimated Future Payments Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards (#)				Exercise or Base Price of Option		Grant Date Fair Value of Stock and	
Name	Grant Date (1)	Threshold	Target	Maximum		ls (\$/Sh) (2)	Option Awards (3)		
Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.	6/13/2007	0	20,000	20,000	\$	22.86	\$	109,800	
Dennis J. Zember Jr.	6/13/2007	0	12,000	12,000	\$	22.86	\$	65,880	
C. Johnson Hipp, III	6/13/2007	0	10,000	10,000	\$	22.86	\$	54,900	
Jon S. Edwards	6/13/2007	0	8,000	8,000	\$	22.86	\$	43,920	
Johnny R. Myers	6/13/2007	0	6,000	6,000	\$	22.86	\$	32,940	

(1) Performance-based awards of stock options that vest in equal installments over a 5-year period upon the achievement of established goals.

12

- (2) The exercise price of awards of options reflects the closing stock price on the date the award was granted.
- (3) Represents the awards granted multiplied by the grant date fair value. The grant date fair value for option awards is the amount determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model on the date of the award. For additional information, refer to note 15 to the Company s financial statements in its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, as filed with the SEC.

For more information regarding various elements of compensation, including an explanation of the Company s philosophy and objectives with respect to setting compensation levels, see the Compensation Discussion and Analysis above. All stock-based awards shown in the 2007 Grants of Plan-Based Awards table above were issued pursuant to the 2005 Plan.

Employment and Compensation Arrangements

The Company has entered into employment agreements with each of the Named Executives. A summary of the terms of these agreements is set forth below.

Edwin W. Hortman, Jr. The Company entered into an executive employment agreement with Mr. Hortman effective as of December 31, 2003, as amended (the Hortman Employment Agreement), pursuant to which Mr. Hortman has agreed to serve as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company for a continuously (on a daily basis) renewing, three-year period until such time as either party gives written notice to the other party not to extend the term of the Hortman Employment Agreement beyond the date that is three years after the date specified in such notice. Notwithstanding any notice not to so extend, the term of the Hortman Employment Agreement will not expire prior to the expiration of 12 months after the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined) of the Company. The Hortman Employment Agreement, which automatically terminates when Mr. Hortman attains age 65, provides that Mr. Hortman will receive a minimum base salary of \$250,000.

In addition, the Hortman Employment Agreement provides that Mr. Hortman is entitled to receive an annual bonus and to participate in all present and future employee benefit, retirement and compensation plans of the Company consistent with his salary and his position as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Hortman Employment Agreement further provides that, in the event of termination of Mr. Hortman s employment with the Company, the Company will pay to Mr. Hortman his base salary and annual bonus through the date of termination and, if he terminates his employment for good reason (as defined) within 12 months after a Change of Control, his base salary and a bonus in an amount determined pursuant to the terms of the Hortman Employment Agreement for three additional 12-month periods.

Upon a termination of Mr. Hortman s employment under certain circumstances, Mr. Hortman will have the opportunity for a period of 90 days following the date of such termination to exercise all of his outstanding stock options at the exercise prices thereof. Finally, the Hortman Employment Agreement also includes certain restrictive covenants which limit Mr. Hortman s ability to compete with the Company or divulge certain confidential information concerning the Company.

Dennis J. Zember Jr. The Company entered into an executive employment agreement with Mr. Zember effective as of May 6, 2005 (the Zember Employment Agreement), pursuant to which Mr. Zember has agreed to serve as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company for an initial term of two years, which initial term shall be automatically renewed for additional consecutive two year terms unless timely notice of non-renewal is given by either the Company or Mr. Zember. Notwithstanding any notice not to so extend, the term of the Zember Employment Agreement will not expire prior to the expiration of 12 months after the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined) of the Company. The Zember Employment Agreement, which automatically terminates when Mr. Zember attains age 65, provides that Mr. Zember will receive a minimum base salary of \$182,500.

In addition, the Zember Employment Agreement provides that Mr. Zember is entitled to receive an annual bonus and to participate in all present and future employee benefit, retirement and compensation plans of the

Company consistent with his salary and his position as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The Zember Employment Agreement further provides that, in the event of termination of Mr. Zember s employment with the Company, the Company will pay to Mr. Zember his base salary and annual bonus through the date of termination and, if he terminates his employment for good reason (as defined) within 12 months after a Change of Control, his base salary and a bonus in an amount determined pursuant to the terms of the Zember Employment Agreement for two additional 12-month periods.

Upon a termination of Mr. Zember s employment for good reason, Mr. Zember will have the opportunity for a period of 90 days following the date of such termination to exercise all of his outstanding stock options at the exercise prices thereof. The Zember Employment Agreement also includes certain restrictive covenants which limit Mr. Zember s ability to compete with the Company or divulge certain confidential information concerning the Company.

C. Johnson Hipp, III. The Company entered into an executive employment agreement with Mr. Hipp effective as of September 5, 2006 (the Hipp Employment Agreement), pursuant to which Mr. Hipp has agreed to serve as Executive Vice President and Group President of the Company for South Carolina. The Hipp Employment Agreement has an initial term of two years, which initial term shall be automatically renewed for additional consecutive one-year terms unless timely notice of non-renewal is given by either the Company or Mr. Hipp. Notwithstanding any notice not to so extend, the term of the Hipp Employment Agreement will not expire prior to the expiration of 12 months after the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined) of the Company. The Hipp Employment Agreement provides that Mr. Hipp will receive a minimum base salary of \$215,000.

In addition, the Hipp Employment Agreement provides that Mr. Hipp is entitled to receive an annual bonus and to participate in all present and future employee benefit, retirement and compensation plans of the Company consistent with his salary and his position as Executive Vice President and Group President for South Carolina. The Hipp Employment Agreement further provides that, in the event of termination of Mr. Hipp s employment with the Company, the Company will pay to Mr. Hipp his base salary and annual bonus through the date of termination and, if he terminates his employment for good reason (as defined) within 12 months after a Change of Control, his base salary and a bonus in an amount determined pursuant to the terms of the Hipp Employment Agreement for one additional 12-month period.

Upon a termination of Mr. Hipp s employment under certain circumstances, Mr. Hipp will have the opportunity for a period of 90 days following the date of such termination to exercise all of his outstanding stock options at the exercise prices thereof. The Hipp Employment Agreement also includes certain restrictive covenants which limit Mr. Hipp s ability to compete with the Company or divulge certain confidential information concerning the Company.

Jon S. Edwards. The Company entered into an executive employment agreement with Mr. Edwards effective as of July 1, 2003 (the Edwards Employment Agreement), pursuant to which Mr. Edwards serves as the Senior Credit Officer and the Director of Credit Administration of the Company. The Edwards Employment Agreement has an initial term of one year, which initial term shall be automatically renewed for additional consecutive one-year terms unless timely notice of non-renewal is given by either the Company or Mr. Edwards. Notwithstanding any notice not to so extend, the term of the Edwards Employment Agreement will not expire prior to the expiration of 12 months after the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined) of the Company. The Edwards Employment Agreement, which automatically terminates when Mr. Edwards attains age 65, provides that Mr. Edwards will receive a minimum base salary of \$142,500.

In addition, the Edwards Employment Agreement provides that Mr. Edwards is entitled to receive an annual bonus and to participate in all present and future employee benefit, retirement and compensation plans of the Company consistent with his salary and his position as the South Regional Executive of the Company. The Edwards Employment Agreement further provides that, in the event of termination of Mr. Edwards s

employment with the Company, the Company will pay to Mr. Edwards his base salary and annual bonus through the date of termination and, if he terminates his employment for good reason (as defined) within 12 months after a Change of Control, his base salary and a bonus in an amount determined pursuant to the terms of the Edwards Employment Agreement for one additional 12-month period.

Upon a termination of Mr. Edwards s employment for good reason, Mr. Edwards will have the opportunity for a period of 90 days following the date of such termination to exercise all of his outstanding stock options at the exercise prices thereof. The Edwards Employment Agreement also includes certain restrictive covenants which limit Mr. Edwards ability to compete with the Company or divulge certain confidential information concerning the Company.

Johnny R. Myers. The Company entered into an executive employment agreement with Mr. Myers effective as of May 11, 2005 (the Myers Employment Agreement), pursuant to which Mr. Myers has agreed to serve as Executive Vice President and Regional Executive of the Company for a continuously (on a daily basis) renewing, one-year period until such time as either party gives written notice to the other party not to extend the term of the Myers Employment Agreement beyond the date that is one year after the date specified in such notice. Notwithstanding any notice not to so extend, the term of the Myers Employment Agreement will not expire prior to the expiration of 12 months after the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined) of the Company. The Myers Employment Agreement, which automatically terminates when Mr. Myers attains age 65, provides that Mr. Myers will receive a minimum base salary of \$140,000.

In addition, the Myers Employment Agreement provides that Mr. Myers is entitled to receive an annual bonus and to participate in all present and future employee benefit, retirement and compensation plans of the Company consistent with his salary and his position as Executive Vice President and Regional Executive of the Company. The Myers Employment Agreement further provides that, in the event of termination of Mr. Myers employment with the Company, the Company will pay to Mr. Myers his base salary and annual bonus through the date of termination and, if he terminates his employment for good reason (as defined) within 12 months after a Change of Control, his base salary and a bonus in an amount determined pursuant to the terms of the Myers Employment Agreement for one additional 12-month period.

Upon a termination of Mr. Myers employment under certain circumstances, Mr. Myers will have the opportunity for a period of 90 days following the date of such termination to exercise all of his outstanding stock options at the exercise prices thereof. The Myers Employment Agreement also includes certain restrictive covenants which limit Mr. Myers ability to compete with the Company or divulge certain confidential information concerning the Company.

15

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information regarding the outstanding equity awards held by the Named Executives at December 31, 2007.

	Option Awards				Stock Awards			
Name	Equity Ince Plan Awar Number Number of Securities Securitie Underlying Underlyi Unexercised Options Unexercise Exercisable Unearned Options		Option Exercise Price (\$/Sh)	e Option Expiration	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (1		
Edwin W. Hortmon, Jr.	7 200(1)	0	¢ 11.01	4/21/2008		_		
Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.	7,200(1) 1,200(2) 2,400(3) 2,880(4) 2,880(5) 7,400(6) 0(7)	0 0 720 1,920 11,100 20,000	\$ 11.81 \$ 8.75 \$ 12.13 \$ 13.75 \$ 15.73 \$ 18.00 \$ 22.86	4/21/2008 1/16/2011 7/16/2012 8/19/2013 5/18/2014 6/28/2015 6/13/2017				
	0(7)	20,000	φ 22.00	0/13/2017	12,000(8) 10,000(9)	\$ \$	202,200 168,500	
Dennis J. Zember Jr.	4,800(10) 5,000(6) 500(11) 0(7)	7,200 7,500 2,000 12,000	\$ 16.71 \$ 18.00 \$ 20.76 \$ 22.86	2/15/2015 6/28/2015 5/16/2016 6/13/2017	4,000(9)	\$	67,400	
C. Johnson Hipp, III	0(12) 0(7)	10,000 10,000	\$ 21.07 \$ 22.86	6/27/2016 6/13/2017	10,000(13)	\$	168,500	
Jon S. Edwards	$7,200(14) \\ 4,800(15) \\ 3,600(2) \\ 3,600(3) \\ 2,880(4) \\ 1,080(5) \\ 2,000(6) \\ 800(11) \\ 0(7)$	0 0 0 720 720 3,000 3,200 8,000	\$ 8.43 \$ 8.65 \$ 8.75 \$ 12.13 \$ 13.75 \$ 15.73 \$ 18.00 \$ 20.76 \$ 22.86	4/7/2009 1/18/2010 1/16/2011 7/16/2012 8/19/2013 5/18/2014 6/28/2015 5/16/2016 6/13/2017	666(9)	\$	11,222	
Johnny R. Myers	800(16)	1,200	\$ 18.16	5/17/2015	000(9)	φ	11,222	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	3,000(6) 1,000(11) 0(7)	4,500 4,000 6,000	\$ 18.00 \$ 20.76 \$ 22.86	6/28/2015 5/16/2016 6/13/2017	((()))	\$	11,222	
					666(9)	Ф	11,222	

These options were granted 4/21/1998. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.
These options were granted 1/16/2001. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.

(3) These options were granted 7/16/2002. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.

- (4) These options were granted 8/19/2003. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.
- (5) These options were granted 5/18/2004. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.
- (6) These options were granted 6/28/2005. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period, subject to achievement of established performance goals.
- (7) These options were granted 6/13/2007. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period, subject to achievement of established performance goals.
- (8) These shares of restricted stock were granted 6/28/2005. They vest in equal installments over a 5-year period, subject to achievement of established performance goals.
- (9) These shares of restricted stock were granted 5/16/2006. They vest in equal installments over a 3-year period beginning January 31, 2007, subject to achievement of established performance goals.
- (10) These options were granted $\frac{2}{15}/2005$. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.

- (11) These options were granted 5/16/2006. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period, subject to achievement of established performance goals.
- (12) These options were granted 6/27/2006. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period, subject to achievement of established performance goals.
- (13) These shares of restricted stock were granted 6/27/2006. They vest in equal installments over a 5-year period beginning January 10, 2008, subject to achievement of established performance goals.
- (14) These options were granted 4/7/1999. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.
- (15) These options were granted 1/18/2000. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.
- (16) These options were granted 5/17/2005. They vest and become exercisable in equal installments over a 5-year period.
- (17) This column represents the market value of unvested restricted shares, which is calculated by multiplying the number of restricted shares by the Company s closing stock price of \$16.85 on December 31, 2007.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

There were no options exercised in 2007 by Named Executives. The following table sets forth information regarding vesting of equity awards held by the Named Executives during 2007.

	Stock Awards					
Name	Number of Shares Acquired on Vesting		Value Realized on Vesting			
	12.000		224.110			
Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.(1)	13,800	\$	334,118			
Dennis J. Zember Jr.(2)	2,000	\$	51,580			
C. Johnson Hipp, III						
Jon S. Edwards(3)	2,134	\$	50,032			
Johnny R. Myers(4)	334	\$	8,614			

- (1) Mr. Hortman acquired, upon the lapse of vesting restrictions, 5,000 shares of Common Stock with a market price each of \$25.79 on January 31, 2007; 4,000 shares of Common Stock with a market price each of \$23.68 on June 28, 2007; and 4,800 shares of Common Stock with a market price each of \$23.01 on May 18, 2007.
- (2) Mr. Zember acquired, upon the lapse of vesting restrictions, 2,000 shares of Common Stock with a market price each of \$25.79 on January 31, 2007.
- (3) Mr. Edwards acquired, upon the lapse of vesting restrictions, 334 shares of Common Stock with a market price each of \$25.79 on January 31, 2007 and 1,800 shares of Common Stock with a market price each of \$23.01 on May 18, 2007.
- (4) Mr. Myers acquired, upon the lapse of vesting restrictions, 334 shares of Common Stock with a market price each of \$25.79 on January 31, 2007.

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes information, as of December 31, 2007, relating to the Company s 2005 Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long-Term Incentive Plan and the ABC Bancorp Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long-Term Incentive Plan that was adopted in 1997.

Plan Category

Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, Weighted average exercise price of outstanding options, Number of securities remaining available for future issuance under equity

	warrants and rights	rants and rights	compensation plans
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders(1) Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders	711,761	\$ 18.20	715,711
Total	711,761	\$ 18.20	715,711

(1) These plans are the 1997 and 2005 Ameris Bancorp Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long Term Incentive Plans.

Pension Benefits

The Company does not maintain any qualified or nonqualified defined benefit plans.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

The Company does not maintain any nonqualified defined contribution plans or other deferred compensation plans.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

Each of the employment agreements between the Company and the Named Executives requires the Company to make severance payments and provide severance benefits to the executive if he terminates his employment with the Company for Good Reason within 12 months after the date of a Change of Control. For these purposes, Good Reason is generally defined to mean that the executive has determined in good faith that one or more of the following events has occurred following or in anticipation of a Change of Control:

a change in the executive s reporting responsibilities, titles or offices, which has the effect of diminishing the executive s responsibility or authority;

a reduction in the executive s alary or a change in the eligibility requirements or performance criteria under any bonus, incentive or compensation plan which adversely affects the executive;

the executive is required to relocate outside a 50-mile radius of Moultrie, Georgia (or in the case of Mr. Edwards, he is required to relocate outside the State of Georgia);

the Company s discontinuance of any pension, bonus, incentive, stock ownership, purchase, option, life insurance, health, accident, disability or other benefit plan in which the executive is participating or any other action by the Company that would adversely affect the executive s participation or materially reduce his benefits under any such plan;

the taking of any action by the Company that would materially adversely affect the physical conditions under which the executive performs his employment duties; or

there is a material change in the fundamental business philosophy, direction and precepts of the Company.

A Change of Control occurs under the employment agreements with the Named Executives (other than Mr. Edwards) if:

a majority of the Board becomes persons other than persons for whose election proxies shall have been solicited by the Board or who are then serving as directors appointed by the Board to fill vacancies caused by death, resignation or the creation of new directorships;

25% of the outstanding voting power of the Company is acquired or becomes beneficially owned by any person or by any two or more persons acting as a partnership, syndicate or other group acting in concert for the purpose of acquiring, holding or disposing of any voting stock of the Company, which group does not include the executive; or

there occurs:

(1) a merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another corporation (other than a transaction with a subsidiary of the Company or a transaction in which (a) the holders of voting stock of the Company immediately prior to the merger continue to hold immediately after the merger at least a majority of all outstanding voting power of the surviving or resulting corporation or its parent and (b) all holders of each outstanding class or series of voting stock of the Company immediately prior to the merger or consolidation have the right to receive substantially the same cash, securities or other property in exchange for their voting stock of the Company as all other holders of such class or series);

(2) a statutory exchange of shares of one or more classes or series of outstanding voting stock of the Company for cash, securities or other property;

(3) the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company; or

(4) the liquidation or dissolution of the Company;

unless, in each case, 25% or more of the voting equity of the surviving corporation or the corporation or other entity acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of the Company (in the case of a merger, consolidation or disposition of assets) or of the Company or its resulting parent corporation (in the case of a statutory share exchange) is beneficially owned by the executive or a group that includes the executive.

Under Mr. Edwards employment agreement, a Change of Control occurs if, without the approval/doff the non-management directors in office prior to such event, (1) there is a merger of consolidation of the Company or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, (2) 20% or more of the outstanding voting power of the Company is acquired by any person, entity or group acting in concert, or (3) the shareholders of the Company approve its liquidation or dissolution. A Change of Control also will result if during a period of 24 consecutive months individuals who were directors at the beginning of such period or who were elected by, or on the nomination or recommendation of, a ²/3 majority of the Board cease to be at least a 70% majority of the Board.

If a Named Executive terminates his employment for Good Reason within 12 months after the date of a Change of Control, then (1) the executive will receive one additional year s salary (or three years salary in the case of Mr. Hortman and two years salary in the case of Mr. Zember) at the rate in effect at the time of termination plus a bonus (which in the case of Messrs. Hortman, Zember and Edwards shall not be less than 40% of the salary payable to such executive upon termination), payable in accordance with the Company s standard payment practices, (2) the executive will be entitled to continue to participate for one year (or two years in the case of Mr. Zember) in the employee welfare benefit plans in which he was entitled to participate prior to termination, (3) the Company will contribute the maximum contribution allowable under its 401(k) plan for the benefit of the executive (such contribution to be made for a period of two years, in the case of Mr. Zember), and (4) the executive will receive payment from the Company for reasonable relocation expenses if the executive relocates within 500 miles of Moultrie, Georgia and the relocation occurs within 180 days after the date of termination.

In addition, under each Named Executive s employment agreement, the executive will be entitled, for a period of 90 days after termination, to purchase all of the stock of the Company that would be issuable under all outstanding stock options previously granted to the executive, at the exercise prices set forth in such options, whether or not such options otherwise are then exercisable. The 2005 Plan also provides that in such event the executive s equity awards will become fully vested and, in the case of options, fully exercisable.

Based upon a hypothetical termination of the Named Executives on December 31, 2007 for Good Reason following a Change of Control, estimated severance benefits payable to each of the Named Executives would be as follows:

Name Salary Bonus Welfare Benefits(Relocation Expenses(2)	Acceleration of Option Awards(3)	Acceleration of Stock Awards(4)
-------------------------------------	--	---------------------------	--	---------------------------------------

Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.	\$ 1,200,000	\$ 480,000	\$ 9,745	\$ 35,750	\$ 20,000	\$ 4,382	\$ 370,700
Dennis J. Zember Jr.	\$ 430,000	\$ 172,000	\$ 11,801	\$ 45,600	\$ 20,000	\$ 1,008	\$ 67,400
C. Johnson Hipp, III	\$ 225,000	\$ 90,000	\$ 11,493	\$ 23,500	\$ 20,000	\$ 0	\$ 168,500
Jon S. Edwards	\$ 169,000	\$ 67,600	\$ 7,828	\$ 18,928	\$ 20,000	\$ 3,038	\$ 11,222
Johnny R. Myers	\$ 165,000	\$ 66,000	\$ 11,062	\$ 18,480	\$ 20,000	\$ 0	\$ 11,222

(1) These amounts have been estimated based upon premiums payable with respect to insurance coverages for the Named Executives as of the hypothetical termination date of December 31, 2007.

(2) These amounts have been estimated based upon reasonable moving and related expenses that may be incurred if the Named Executive relocates in a manner that satisfies the conditions of his employment agreement.

(3) This amount equals the product of unvested awards that accelerate upon the termination of employment multiplied by (x) the Company s closing stock price of \$16.85 on December 31, 2007 minus (y) the exercise price of such awards.

(4) This amount equals the product of unvested awards that accelerate upon the termination of employment multiplied by the Company s closing stock price of \$16.85 on December 31, 2007.

The foregoing payments and benefits are subject to reduction under the Named Executives employment agreements in connection with certain tax matters. Those agreements provide that if the severance and change of control benefits payable to the executive would be subject to the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), or would be nondeductible to the Company pursuant to Section 280G of the Code, then such benefit payments shall be reduced to be the largest amounts that will result in no portion of the benefit payments being subject to the tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code or nondeductible by the Company.

Director Compe nsation

The following table sets forth information regarding the payment of fees to non-management directors of the Company during 2007.

Name	Fees Earn Paid in C	
Johnny W. Floyd	\$ 22	2,096
J. Raymond Fulp	\$ 35	5,196
Kenneth J. Hunnicutt	\$ 7	7,065
Daniel B. Jeter	\$ 24	1,996
Glenn A. Kirbo	\$ 23	3,463
Robert P. Lynch	\$ 17	,396
Brooks Sheldon	\$ 31	,296
Eugene M. Vereen, Jr.	\$ 14	1,400
Henry C. Wortman	\$ 29	9,096

All directors serving on the Board receive a retainer fee of \$833 per month (other than the Chairman, who receives a retainer fee of \$1,333 per month) plus \$500 per meeting attended for their services, except that Mr. Vereen receives a monthly fee of \$1,200 for serving on the Board. Board meetings are held monthly. With respect to committee meetings held on a date other than a regularly scheduled Board meeting, members of the Executive Committee (except Mr. Hortman) receive a fee of \$200 per meeting attended, members of the Compensation Committee receive a fee of \$200 per meeting attended, and members of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee receive a fee of \$200 per meeting attended. Messrs. Jeter and Sheldon each receive \$200 per meeting attended for their services on the Asset Liability Management Committee and are the only directors on the Asset Liability Management Committee to receive compensation for service thereon.

Compensation Committee Interlocks an d Insider Participation

None of the members of the Compensation Committee during fiscal 2007 or as of the date of this Proxy Statement is or has been an officer or employee of the Company.

R EPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

The Board has established a separately-designated standing Audit Committee and adopted an amended and restated charter for the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is comprised solely of independent directors, as defined by the listing standards of Nasdaq, one of whom, Brooks Sheldon, is an audit committee financial expert, as defined by the rules of the SEC. The primary purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in its general oversight of the Company s financial reporting, internal controls and audit functions.

As more fully described in its charter, the Audit Committee reviews the Company s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board. The Company s management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements and the reporting process, and Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, LLC (Mauldin & Jenkins), the Company s independent auditors, are responsible for performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards to obtain reasonable assurance that the Company s consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement and expressing an opinion on the conformity of the financial statements with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company s internal auditors are responsible to the Audit Committee and the Board for testing the integrity of the financial accounting and reporting control systems and such other matters as the Audit Committee and Board determine.

The Audit Committee has met and has held discussions and reviewed with management, the Company s internal auditors and Mauldin & Jenkins concerning the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Management has represented to the Audit Committee that the Company s consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and the Audit Committee discussed with Mauldin & Jenkins the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended by Statement of Auditing Standards No. 90 (Audit Committee Communications).

In addition, the Audit Committee has discussed with Mauldin & Jenkins their independence from the Company and its management, including the matters in the written disclosures required by the Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees). The Audit Committee has also discussed with Mauldin & Jenkins any relationships that may have an impact on their objectivity and independence and satisfied itself as to their independence.

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 for filing with the SEC.

Submitted by the Audit Committee:

Johnny W. Floyd

J. Raymond Fulp

Robert P. Lynch

Brooks Sheldon (Chairman)

Henry C. Wortman

PROPOSAL 2 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Company has appointed Mauldin & Jenkins as its independent auditors for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Mauldin & Jenkins has served as the Company s independent auditors since 1985. Services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by Mauldin & Jenkins in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 included the examination of the Company s consolidated financial statements, limited review of quarterly reports, services related to filings with the SEC and consultation with respect to various tax matters.

Representatives of Mauldin & Jenkins will be present at the Annual Meeting, will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate questions by shareholders.

Fees and Ser vices

The following is a summary of the fees billed to the Company by Mauldin & Jenkins for professional services rendered for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006:

Fee Category	Fiscal 2007 Fees	Fiscal 2006 Fees
Audit Fees(1)	\$281,000	\$322,600
Audit-related Fees(2)	41,500	55,500
Tax Fees(3)	57,000	98,650
All Other Fees(4)	0	0
Total Fees	\$409,500	\$476,750

(1) Consists of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company s annual consolidated financial statements, review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports, attestation services related to management s assertions related to internal controls and services that are normally provided by Mauldin & Jenkins in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) Consists of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company s consolidated financial statements and are not reported under Audit Fees. These services include employee benefit plan audits, consultations concerning financial accounting and reporting standards and assistance with SEC inquiries.

(3) Consists of fees billed for professional services for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning. These services include assistance regarding federal, state and local tax compliance and assistance with tax notices.

(4) Consists of fees for products and services other than the services reported above. There were no fees paid to Mauldin & Jenkins in fiscal 2007 or 2006 that are not included in the above classifications.

Policy on Audit C ommittee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services

All services provided by Mauldin & Jenkins are subject to pre-approval by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee may authorize any member of the Audit Committee to approve services by Mauldin & Jenkins in the event there is a need for such approval prior to the next full

Table of Contents

Audit Committee meeting. However, the Audit Committee must review the decisions made by such authorized member of the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting. Before granting any approval, the Audit Committee gives due consideration to whether approval of the proposed service will have a detrimental impact on Mauldin & Jenkins independence.

Unless otherwise specified, the proxy holders designated in the proxy will vote the shares covered thereby at the Annual Meeting FOR ratification of the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins. In the event that the shareholders do not ratify the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins, the appointment will be reconsidered by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board recommends that you vote FOR ratification of the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins as the independent auditors of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Proxies will be voted FOR ratifying this selection unless otherwise specified.

PROPOSAL 3 SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL

TO DECLASSIFY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board unanimously recommends that you vote AGAINST the shareholder proposal set forth below.

Shareholder Proposal

Gerald R. Armstrong, 820 Sixteenth Street, No. 705, Denver, Colorado 80202-3227, telephone (303) 355-1199, the owner of 200 shares of Common Stock, has advised the Company that he plans to introduce the following resolution at the Annual Meeting. In accordance with rules of the SEC, the text of Mr. Armstrong s resolution and supporting statement, as follows, is printed verbatim from his submission.

That the shareholders of AMERIS BANCORP request its Board of Directors to take the steps necessary to eliminate classification of terms of the Board of Directors to require that all Directors stand for election annually. The Board declassification shall be completed in a manner that does not affect the unexpired terms of the previously-elected Directors.

The reasons given by Mr. Armstrong for the resolution are as follows:

The proponent believes the election of directors is the strongest way that shareholders influence the directors of any corporation. Currently, our board of directors is divided into three classes with each class serving three-year terms. Because of this structure, shareholders may only vote for one-third of the directors each year. This is not in the best interest of shareholders because it reduces accountability.

U. S. Bancorp, Associates Banc-Corp, Piper-Jaffray Companies, Fifth-Third Bancorp, Pan Pacific Retail Properties, Qwest Communications International, Xcel Energy, Greater Bay Bancorp, North Valley Bancorp, Pacific Continental Corporation, Regions Financial Corporation, CoBiz Financial Inc., Marshal & Illsley Corporation, and Wintrust Financial, Inc. are among the corporations electing directors annually because of the efforts of the proponent.

The performance of our management and our Board of Directors is now being more strongly tested due to economic conditions and the accountability for performance must be given to the shareholders whose capital has been entrusted in the form of share investments.

A study by researchers at Harvard Business School and the University of Pennsylvania s Wharton School titled Corporate Governance and Equity Prices (Quarterly Journal of Economics, February, 2003), looked at the relationship between corporate governance practices (included classified boards) and firm performance. The study found a significant positive link between governance practices favoring shareholders (such as annual directors election) and firm value.

While management may argue that directors need and deserve continuity, management should become aware that continuity and tenure may be best assured when their performance as directors is exemplary and is deemed beneficial to the best interests of the corporation and its shareholders.

The proponent regards as unfounded the concern expressed by some that annual election of all directors could leave companies without experienced directors in the event that all incumbents are voted out by shareholders. In the unlikely event that shareholders do vote to replace all directors, such a decision would express dissatisfaction with the incumbent directors and reflect a need for change.

If you agree that shareholders may benefit from greater accountability afforded by annual election of *all* directors, please vote FOR this proposal.

Board of Directors Recommendation

All of the members of the Board recommend that you vote AGAINST this proposal. The Board believes that this proposal would be harmful to the Company and its shareholders and opposes the proposal for the reasons discussed below.

The Board and its Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, in consultation with outside advisers, have carefully considered this proposal and the arguments for and against a classified board. The Board has concluded that the Company s classified board structure continues to be in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Company currently has a classified board consisting of three classes Class I, Class II and Class III. A classified board (sometimes called a staggered board) is a common corporate governance provision that has a long history in American corporate law. Board classification staggers the annual election of director slates. In the absence of board classification, all continuing and nominated directors of a corporation stand for election annually. Corporations utilizing classified board structures, however, assemble directors into distinct classes with successive annual elections occurring only for a single director class. Thus, under a classified structure, directors are elected to annual terms equal to the number of classes.

Despite its prominence as a corporate governance feature, the classified board has been the subject of some criticism in academic circles and elsewhere. The debate on classified boards, however, is not one-sided. For example, a recent study has concluded that shareholders of targets having classified boards realize total returns that are at least equivalent to those enjoyed by shareholders of targets with a single class of directors and that board classification may improve the relative bargaining power of target management. Bates, Becher and Lemmon, *Board Classification and Managerial Entrenchment: Evidence from the Market for Corporate Control* (September 2007). While the number of companies with classified boards has declined, a majority of companies included in the S&P Composite 1500 continue to have classified boards.

The criticism of staggered or classified boards centers on their serving to entrench management. With most staggered boards divided into three classes with one-third of directors elected each year, dissidents cannot gain control of a board in less than at least two years. This makes winning a contest for board control more time-consuming and difficult to achieve. Opponents of a classified board also contend that, in the absence of annual elections, directors may lose their sense of accountability to shareholders and govern more in management s interests than those of the shareholders. In addition, critics also assert that classified boards can adversely affect shareholder value by creating a barrier to non-consensual tender offers, takeovers and proxy contests that may deprive shareholders of takeover premiums.

Much of the criticism of staggered boards is rooted in the perception that an unfettered market for corporate control is the most effective way to root out underperforming managers and maximize shareholder value. Focusing on this aspect of the analysis, the Board believes that a staggered board serves to further a number of procedural safeguards of benefit to shareholders. The inability of a would-be acquirer to replace the entire Board in a single election provides additional time for the Board to determine the adequacy of a proposed transaction, assess the bidder s accountability and ability to complete the transaction, seek to negotiate a higher premium, seek additional bidders and consider other options to maximize shareholder value. A staggered board structure encourages potential acquirers to initiate takeover actions through arm s-length negotiations with management; it does not preclude unsolicited acquisition proposals. Instead, by eliminating the threat of imminent removal, it positions the Board to act to maximize the value shareholders receive from a potential acquisition.

The Board believes that the annual election of directors may encourage directors to focus on shorter-term issues and to submit to short-term pressure from special interests. This short-term focus may be inconsistent with the long-term well-being of the Company and its shareholders. Additionally, the Board believes that because all

directors, regardless of the length of their term, have the same fiduciary responsibility to shareholders, directors serving on a classified board are no less accountable to shareholders than they would be if they were elected annually.

The Board further believes that the critics of board classification overlook or discount the several respects in which a staggered board arguably furthers good corporate governance, including the following:

Director independence Multi-year terms tend to increase directors independence from management. Board members who are in opposition on any particular issue or issues have, in general, less of an immediate threat of not being re-nominated.

Long-term focus The Board, which is the governing body responsible for oversight of the Company s strategic, long-term planning, should be better equipped to function in that role when its members have multi-year terms.

Stability The Board, management and the Company s shareholders derive a benefit from directors familiarity with and knowledge of the Company and its diverse operations, which the Board believes increases with their greater tenure.

In view of the foregoing, the Board perceives that continuity of membership at the Board and Board committee levels is optimal and contributes to the effectiveness of the checks and balances that serve as the foundation for effective corporate governance. Accordingly, the Board believes that, at present, retaining a classified board structure is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Approval of this proposal requires the vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock present and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Adoption of this proposal would not automatically result in the elimination of the Company s classified board structure. A formal amendment repealing the classified board provisions of the Company s amended and restated bylaws would need to be submitted to the Board and would require approval of the majority of all directors.

The Board recommends that you vote AGAINST this proposal. Proxies will be voted AGAINST the proposal unless you vote in favor of it.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL

OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of Common Stock, as of the Record Date, by (i) directors, (ii) nominees for election as directors, (iii) Named Executives, (iv) certain other executive officers of the Company, (v) all directors and executive officers as a group, and (vi) each person who, to the knowledge of the Company, is a beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding Common Stock.

Name of Beneficial Owner(1)	Common Stock Beneficially Owned as of February 19, 2008(2) ⁺	Percent of Class(3)
Polaris Capital Management, Inc.	1,254,931	9.26%
125 Summer Street		
Suite 1470		
Boston, Massachusetts 02110		
Jon S. Edwards(4)	39,265	*
Johnny W. Floyd(5)	19,982	*
J. Raymond Fulp	19,226	*
C. Johnson Hipp, III	24,500	*
Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.(6)	95,933	*
Daniel B. Jeter	14,776	*
Glenn A. Kirbo(7)	17,964	*
Cindi H. Lewis(8)	39,268	*
Robert P. Lynch(9)	30,679	*
Michael F. McDonald(10)	23,593	*
Johnny R. Myers(11)	6,236	*
Charles A. Robinson(12)	29,905	*
Brooks Sheldon	60,208	*
Jimmy D. Veal	59,592	*
Eugene M. Vereen, Jr.	52,596	*
Gregory H. Walls(13)	1,290	*
Henry C. Wortman(14)	87,864	*
Dennis J. Zember Jr.(15)	46,936	*
All directors and executive officers as a group		
(18 persons)(16)	669,813	4.94%

* Less than 1%.

+ All fractional shares have been rounded up to the next whole number.

- Unless otherwise noted in this table or the footnotes to this table, the address of each beneficial owner is 24 Second Avenue, S.E., Moultrie, Georgia 31768.
- (2) Except as otherwise specified, each individual has sole and direct beneficial ownership interest and voting rights with respect to all shares of Common Stock indicated.
- (3) Percentage calculated based on 13,556,770 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of the Record Date.

(4)

Includes 25,960 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date; 666 shares of restricted Common Stock over which Mr. Edwards exercises voting power; and 12 shares owned by Mr. Edwards wife, with whom he shares voting and investment power.

- (5) Includes 11,738 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Floyd s wife.
- (6) Includes 23,960 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date; 22,000 shares of restricted Common Stock over which Mr. Hortman exercises voting power; and 12 shares owned by Mr. Hortman s wife, with whom he shares voting and investment power.
- (7) Includes 224 shares of Common Stock held by Mr. Kirbo s wife as custodian for a child, as to all of which Mr. Kirbo disclaims beneficial ownership.

- (8) Includes 18,208 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date; 2,000 shares of restricted Common Stock over which Mrs. Lewis exercises voting power; 1,197 shares of Common Stock owned jointly with Mrs. Lewis s husband; 58 shares of Common Stock owned jointly with Mrs. Lewis s daughter; and 658 shares of Common Stock owned by Mrs. Lewis s husband, with whom Mrs. Lewis shares voting and investment power.
- (9) Includes 1,621 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Lynch s wife.
- (10) Includes 10,600 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date.
- (11) Includes 4,800 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to option exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date and 666 shares of restricted Common Stock over which Mr. Myers exercises voting power.
- (12) Includes 10,598 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date and 1,000 shares owned by Mr. Robinson s wife, with whom he shares voting and investment power.
- (13) Includes 500 shares of restricted Common Stock over which Mr. Walls exercises voting power.
- (14) Includes 21,337 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Wortman s wife, with whom Mr. Wortman shares investment and voting power; 12,081 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Wortman as co-trustee with Mr. Wortman s wife for the benefit of their two children; and 5,563 shares of Common Stock owned jointly with Mr. Wortman s wife.
- (15) Includes 10,300 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date; 4,000 shares of restricted Common Stock over which Mr. Zember exercises voting power; and 400 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Zember s children and with respect to which he has voting and investment power.
- (16) Includes 104,426 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of the Record Date and 39,832 shares of restricted Common Stock, over which certain members of the group exercise voting power.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires the Company s directors, executive officers and persons who own more than 10% of the Common Stock to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of the Common Stock. They are also required to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file with the SEC.

To the Company s knowledge, based solely on its review of the copies of such reports furnished to it and written representations that no other reports were required, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, all of the Company s officers, directors and greater than 10% shareholders complied with all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements, except that Charles A. Robinson filed a Form 4 late with respect to two separate transactions in shares of the Common Stock that had not previously been reported on a timely basis.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The Company and Ameris Bank have engaged in, and in the future expect to engage in, banking transactions in the ordinary course of business with directors and officers of the Company and Ameris Bank and their family members and associates, including corporations, partnerships and other organizations in which such directors and officers have an interest. The Company and the Audit Committee review all relationships and transactions in which the Company and such related persons are participants, including such banking transactions, on a case-by-case basis. In performing such review, consideration is given to (i) the nature of the related person s interest in the transaction, (ii) the material terms of the transaction, (iii) the significance of the transaction to the related person or the Company, and (iv) other matters deemed appropriate. Company policy prohibits the making of loans to executive officers.

At December 31, 2007, certain employees and directors and their affiliates were indebted to Ameris Bank in the aggregate amount of approximately \$6.2 million. These loans were made on substantially the same terms (including interest rates, collateral and repayment terms) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with others and, in the opinion of management, do not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features.

Since November 1, 1991, the Company has leased a building from Mr. Hunnicutt, who served as a director of Ameris until March, 2007, and Lynn Jones, who served as a director of Ameris Bank until February, 2006, that is used as the Company s operations center in Moultrie, Georgia. Rent payments made under the lease agreement, which expires on July 31, 2008, totaled \$78,000 for 2007.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board does not contemplate bringing before the Annual Meeting any matter other than those specified in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders, nor does it have information that other matters will be presented at the Annual Meeting. If other matters come before the Annual Meeting, signed proxies will be voted upon such questions in accordance with the best judgment of the persons acting under the proxies.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Shareholder Proposals

Any shareholder proposal intended to be presented at the Company s annual meeting of shareholders to be held in 2009 and to be included in the Company s proxy statement and form of proxy for that meeting must be in writing and must be received by the Company, directed to the attention of the Corporate Secretary, not later than November 28, 2008. Any such proposal must comply in all respects with the rules and regulations of the SEC.

Annual Report

A copy of the Company s Annual Report to Shareholders is enclosed with this Proxy Statement. The Annual Report to Shareholders is not deemed a part of the proxy soliciting material. The Company s Annual Report to the SEC on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, was filed with the SEC on March 12, 2008. Upon receipt of a written request, the Company will, without charge, furnish any owner of its Common Stock a copy of its Annual Report to the SEC on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, including financial statements and the footnotes thereto. Copies of exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K are also available upon specific request and payment of a reasonable charge for reproduction. Such request should be directed to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at the address indicated on the first page of this Proxy Statement.

Householding of Proxy Materials

The SEC has adopted rules that permit companies and intermediaries such as brokers to satisfy delivery requirements for proxy statements with respect to two or more shareholders sharing the same address by delivering a single proxy statement addressed to those shareholders. This process, which is commonly referred to as householding, potentially provides extra convenience for shareholders and cost savings for companies. A number of brokers with account holders who are shareholders of the Company will be householding the Company s proxy materials. Once you have received notice from your broker that it will be householding materials to your address, householding and would prefer to receive a separate proxy statement, or if you are receiving multiple copies of the proxy statement and wish to receive only one, please notify your broker or notify us by sending a written request to Ameris Bancorp, 24 Second Avenue, S.E., Moultrie, Georgia, 31768, Attn: Corporate Secretary, or by calling 229-890-1111.

Ameris Bancorp

24 Second Avenue, S.E.

Moultrie, Georgia 31768

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE

2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON APRIL 29, 2008

The undersigned shareholder hereby appoints **Daniel B. Jeter** and **Edwin W. Hortman, Jr.**, and each of them individually, the proxies and attorneys for the undersigned, with full power of substitution, to act with respect to and to vote all shares which the undersigned is entitled to vote, with the powers the undersigned would possess if personally present, at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the Annual Meeting) of Ameris Bancorp (the Company) to be held on Tuesday, April 29, 2008, at Sunset Country Club, located at 2730 South Main Street, Moultrie, Georgia, at 4:15 p.m., local time, and at any adjournment or postponement thereof, as directed below with respect to the matters set forth below, and with discretionary authority on all other matters that come before the Annual Meeting, all as more fully described in the Proxy Statement of the Company for the Annual Meeting received by the undersigned shareholder.

If no direction is made, the proxy will be voted: (a) FOR the election of the director nominees named below and (b) in accordance with the recommendation of the Board of Directors on the other matters referred to below.

A. <u>Company Proposals</u> The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR all the nominees listed below and FOR Proposal 2.

- 1. Election of the following nominees to the Board of Directors:
 - FOR all nominees listed below (except as marked "WITHHOLD AUTHORITY to vote for all nominees listed below to the contrary below) Class II (Three-Year Term)

J. Raymond Fulp

Robert P. Lynch <u>Class III (One-Year Term)</u> Brooks Sheldon

Jimmy D. Veal

Instructions: To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee(s), write the name(s) of such nominee(s) in the space provided below. If this Proxy is executed by the undersigned in such manner as not to withhold authority to vote for the election of any nominee, this Proxy will be deemed to grant such authority.

2. Ratification of the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, LLC, as the Company s independent accountants for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007:

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

B. <u>Shareholder Proposal</u> The Board of Directors recommends a vote <u>AGAINS</u>T Proposal 3.

3. Requesting our Board of Directors to take the necessary steps to declassify the Board of Directors:

..

FOR

..

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

..

Please date and sign in the same manner in which your shares are registered. When signing as executor, administrator, trustee, guardian, attorney or corporate officer, please give full title. Joint owners should each sign.

Print Name(s):

Signature:

Signature If

Held Jointly:

Dated:_____, 2008